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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Today the

          3  Committee on Consumer Affairs will have its third

          4  hearing on proposed Intro. 813-A, a bill requiring

          5  that the engines of sight-seeing buses comply with

          6  current emission standards as a condition for

          7  obtaining a DCA tour bus license.

          8                 In our second hearing on proposed

          9  Intro. 813-A, the Deputy Director of the City's

         10  Department of Transportation discussed the study

         11  conducted by West Virginia University on the

         12  emissions of vintage buses.

         13                 The Committee also heard testimony

         14  from tour bus industry representatives and advocates

         15  of the legislation.

         16                 After our discussions on Intro.

         17  813-A, the bill and the preconsidered resolution

         18  adopting the Environmental Assessment Statement will

         19  be voted on by this Committee. The Committee will

         20  then have its oversight hearing of the Department of

         21  Consumer Affairs. The Department's mission is to

         22  protect consumers against deceptive and illegal

         23  trade practices by ensuring that businesses comply

         24  with City and State licensing laws, consumer

         25  protection laws and weights and measures laws.
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          2                 The Department also licenses over

          3  45,000 businesses, educates businesses and the

          4  public about consumer and regulatory issues and

          5  resolves consumer complaints.

          6                 Commissioner Jane Hoffman, who will

          7  not be here, will present answers and questions for

          8  the Committee today.

          9                 We will begin with the bill for the

         10  tour buses.

         11                 John Kilgore.

         12                 MR. KILGORE: Thank you for the

         13  opportunity to testify today. My name is John

         14  Kilgore, I live at Fulton Terry Landing, a historic

         15  neighborhood next to the Brooklyn Bridge. I also

         16  represent the Fulton Terry Landing Association,

         17  which is the neighborhood association.

         18                 The views for Manhattan for our newly

         19  renovated pier have attracted the attention of every

         20  tour bus operator in New York City. Over the last

         21  three years, the number of buses neighborhood has

         22  risen dramatically to the point where we are

         23  overrun. Make no mistake; we are in a very

         24  short-lived winter lull now, with a fraction of the

         25  buses normally present. Soon, they will be back in
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          2  force. From March to November we often have as many

          3  as ten to 15 buses at a time outside our building.

          4                 There is a steady stream of them that

          5  peaks throughout the evening hours and often does

          6  not subside until after midnight. They spread

          7  themselves all over our streets, blocking roadways,

          8  pedestrian walkways and the designated Transit

          9  Authority bus stops obstructing traffic. They have

         10  PA systems with which they regale not only their

         11  passengers but also everyone else in the

         12  neighborhood.

         13                 They stop in the middle of Old Fulton

         14  Street. The passengers get off and on the buses

         15  haphazardly in the middle of the street. The levels

         16  of noise and air pollution from the buses are

         17  unhealthy and dangerous. There have been a number of

         18  occasions on which we and other neighbors in our

         19  neighborhood can see haze from bus exhaust inside

         20  our apartments.

         21                 Now that we are in the winter lull

         22  our children have finally stopped coughing when they

         23  get up in the morning. My wife and I fear for their

         24  health, diesel exhaust is a known carcinogen.

         25                 We have seriously considered leaving
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          2  our home of a decade because of this onslaught, but

          3  we continue to believe that the City will finally

          4  take some action long overdue for our besieged

          5  historic neighborhood.

          6                 It is shocking to us that to this day

          7  we have not been granted designated layover areas

          8  for the buses, particularly when we have several

          9  obvious remedies in the immediate vicinity.

         10                 Double-decker buses are by no means

         11  the only offenders. Buses hired out by private tour

         12  operators routinely idle for the entire span of

         13  their visit, and often refuse to shut down in order

         14  to keep their air conditioning or heat running.

         15                 We in the neighborhood are

         16  incredulous that the City has not come to our aid

         17  and has allowed Fulton Ferry to be besieged in this

         18  way.

         19                 There have been a number of occasions

         20  when we have had very heavy police presence for a

         21  visit by the Mayor to a river cafe. The officers on

         22  duty invariably expressed disbelief that such a

         23  free-for-all is allowed to persist.

         24                 What makes this so infuriating to us

         25  is that there is a simple solution - create and
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          2  enforce the use of layovers away from residences,

          3  limit the number of tour buses that can come into a

          4  neighborhood and vigorously enforce no idling laws.

          5  Of course the measure that is before us today

          6  enforce emission standards.

          7                 We are desperate, and I use that term

          8  advisedly, to have a remedy in place before the next

          9  onslaught this summer.

         10                 Thank you for the opportunity to make

         11  a statement.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Well, we hope

         13  that this legislation will be some sort of relief

         14  for you.

         15                 With that, there is no one else --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Just one

         17  observation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Mr. Kilgore,

         20  I can understand the feeling of being intruded upon,

         21  though to a lesser degree, I had an experience. My

         22  wife and I, we went on a cruise to Alaska, and a

         23  side trip was on a lake with all of the scenes and

         24  the environmental enjoyment. And there was nothing

         25  on the lake, I saw a cabin on the other side, and
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          2  all I could make out was on the side of the cabin it

          3  said, "go home and leave us alone."

          4                 MR. KILGORE: Well, I think those

          5  sentiments are universal.

          6                 We enjoy having tourists in our

          7  neighborhood. It is not the tourists themselves,

          8  it's the fact that the buses are unregulated and

          9  really poses serious environmental threat.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I understand.

         11  I wasn't making light of it.

         12                 MR. KILGORE: I know, your point is

         13  well taken.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: It's a hell

         15  of an intrusion on your lifestyle.

         16                 MR. KILGORE: Yes, well, there is

         17  always an intrusion somewhere.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Madam Chair,

         19  may I just ask a simple question?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Were you able

         22  to identify the bus companies?

         23                 MR. KILGORE: I can give you some

         24  names. But when I say every tour operator in New

         25  York City, I am not kidding.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Of course.

          3                 MR. KILGORE: Of course Gray and New

          4  York Apple are prime suspects in this. New York

          5  Apple in particular, I am sure you won't be

          6  surprised when I tell you that their buses are among

          7  the dirtiest, and they are the ones who always

          8  refuse to shut down, because they say if we shut

          9  down we can't start it up again, and indeed many

         10  times you will find a dead bus on the street in the

         11  morning, and it is always a Big Apple bus.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: You know that

         13  they were taken off the streets last night.

         14                 MR. KILGORE: I rewrote my remarks

         15  last night because of that, it finally reached me.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Thank you. I

         18  just asked the question for the record.

         19                 MR. KILGORE: To name some others,

         20  there is Gray, there are private operators that own

         21  buses but rent them to people who book these tours,

         22  and they are not bus operators themselves. In other

         23  words, the people who manage the tours are different

         24  from the companies that own the buses.

         25                 I could gather a list for you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: The bill we

          3  are voting on today is inclusive of all of the buses

          4  that, you know, all the tour buses that do travel

          5  throughout our City.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Madam

          7  Chairperson?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I just would

         10  like to suggest, and to certainly thank you for your

         11  testimony, Mr. Kilgore, and I certainly can

         12  understand the inconvenience and the fear that you

         13  have in terms of the health and safety of not only

         14  your family but the other residents as well.

         15                 Have you, I think what might be

         16  helpful of you is if you take some pictures of what

         17  happens when those different tour companies come

         18  into the neighborhood, and the experience that it

         19  poses to the neighborhood as well, I think that

         20  might be helpful.

         21                 MR. KILGORE: Yes, we have been doing

         22  that, we have been documenting this, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you.

         24                 MR. KILGORE: Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.
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          2                 With that we are going to take a vote

          3  on Intro. No. 813-A, a local law to amend the

          4  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

          5  relation to authorizing the Commissioner of Consumer

          6  Affairs to require that the engines of sight-seeing

          7  buses comply with emission standards as a condition

          8  of licensing.

          9                 And Resolution determining that the

         10  enactment of proposed Intro. No. 813-A will not have

         11  a significant adverse effect on the environment.

         12                 And with that, we are going to vote

         13  on the reso first.

         14                 Roll call, please.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Koslowitz.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Spigner.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robinson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I would like

         21  to be placed as a sponsor on this piece of

         22  legislation, proposed legislation. And I vote yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Sabini.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Henry.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Fiala.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

          6  at six in the affirmative, none in the negative and

          7  no abstentions and it is adopted.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, I would

          9  like to leave the vote open for other members who

         10  are coming in.

         11                 Okay, and now we will vote on Intro.

         12  813-A.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Koslowitz.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Spigner.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you.

         17                 Madam Chair, I, too, would like to be

         18  included as a sponsor on this and the preceding

         19  resolution, on this intro and the preceding

         20  resolution I vote aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robinson.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Madam

         23  Chairperson, again I would like to be excused to

         24  explain my vote, and vote in the affirmative on

         25  Intro. 813-A. I believe that it would begin to
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          2  resolve and bring some comfort to the communities in

          3  terms of us setting some standards regarding

          4  emissions on sight-seeing buses and others within

          5  the City of New York.

          6                 I vote aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Sabini.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Henry.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Fiala.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

         14  at six in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         15  no abstentions, and the vote is still open on both

         16  items.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         18  Thank you very much.

         19                 Now we will continue with Andy Eiler,

         20  from the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         21                 MR. EILER: Good afternoon, Chairwoman

         22  Koslowitz and members of the Committee.

         23                 My name is Andrew Eiler, I am a Chief

         24  Research Analyst for the Department of Consumer

         25  Affairs. Commissioner Hoffman asked me to thank you
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          2  for the opportunity to brief you at this oversight

          3  hearing on the policies and programs of the

          4  Department of Consumer Affairs as implemented during

          5  the past fiscal year. And I might here add, she is

          6  going to be gratified with the news of the vote.

          7                 As the year winds down, it is a good

          8  time to take stock of how our performance during

          9  this past fiscal year has measured up to our goals.

         10  The results of this evaluation an self-examination

         11  enables the public to assess the effectiveness of

         12  our efforts.

         13                 It also enables us to identify

         14  adjustments or improvements we can make in our

         15  initiatives, programs and staff performance to

         16  enhance our effectiveness in carrying out the

         17  mission of the Department.

         18                 I am happy to tell you that DCA began

         19  a new millennium with a very productive fiscal 2000.

         20                 I will begin with the achievements of

         21  our enforcement division. In Fiscal 2000, the

         22  Enforcement Division conducted 100,939 inspections.

         23  The Division thereby kept up with last year's

         24  record-setting pace by holding onto the inspector

         25  productivity gains that we had realized last year,
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          2  and by continuing our strong focus on a

          3  comprehensive tobacco project which has many

          4  inspectors working extra hours and conducting extra

          5  inspections.

          6                 A closer look at the results shows

          7  that we exceeded by 400 inspections last fiscal

          8  year's record setting 59,459 licensing inspections.

          9  That was, however, offset by a slight drop from the

         10  record-setting 43,641 weights and measures law and

         11  consumer protection law inspections we achieved

         12  during Fiscal 1999.

         13                 The reallocation of our inspection

         14  effort to high complaint areas like fruit and

         15  vegetable stands, parking lots and second-hand

         16  dealers that we started last year, and the

         17  electronic stores that we have added to the list,

         18  continue to bear fruit in two ways. First, the

         19  46,179 violations issued in Fiscal 2000, exceeded by

         20  25 percent the number of violations we issued two

         21  years ago before we refocused our efforts.

         22                 Second, the largest portion of the

         23  decline from last year occurred in the stoopline

         24  stand violations, which plunged from 19,000 to

         25  11,000. I like to think that is because stoopline
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          2  stand operators got the message and left us with

          3  many fewer violations to write.

          4                 Still, the more than 11,000

          5  violations we issued shows we have much work to do

          6  in this area.

          7                 We also shifted our enforcement

          8  effort to the weights and measures area. The shift

          9  resulted in almost a 21 percent increase in the

         10  number of weights and measures violations we issued.

         11                 This shift and focus and our reduced

         12  emphasis on checking for taxable items did see a

         13  drop off in CPL violations that were issued in the

         14  last fiscal year.

         15                 The Home Improvement contract and

         16  taskforce of lawyers and inspectors that we formed

         17  last year continued to target unlicensed contractors

         18  who have been the subject of a large number of

         19  complaints.

         20                 During Fiscal Year 2000, the

         21  Department seized 47 vehicles from unlicensed

         22  contractors. These contractors have agreed to pay

         23  fines, $27,600 in fines, and $18,140 in consumer

         24  restitution, and to reimburse $10,000 to the Home

         25  Improvement Contract and Trust Fund.
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          2                 In June 2000, the Department began a

          3  limited amnesty program for unlicensed home

          4  improvement contractors who settle their cases, pay

          5  back fines and obtain a license from the Department.

          6  This amnesty was not extended for the five most

          7  wanted contractors, a list of whom can be found on

          8  the Department's web site at New York

          9  NYC.GOV/CONSUMERS.

         10                 The Enforcement Division also

         11  continue its vigorous implementation of the nation's

         12  largest anti-tobacco inspection program.

         13                 During Fiscal 2000, DCA conducted

         14  6,500 inspections and issued 1,700 violations to

         15  stores found selling cigarettes to minors during

         16  Phase II of the program.

         17                 In May of 2000, the Department began

         18  Phase III of this enforcement initiative and

         19  instituted 652 violations for the 3,400 inspections

         20  conducted during the remainder of Fiscal 2000.

         21                 This violation rate of 19 percent

         22  represents significant decrease from the rate of 34

         23  percent in Phase II inspections conducted during

         24  Fiscal 2000.

         25                 We are convinced that our vigorous
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          2  enforcement effort combined with our widespread

          3  information program to alert cigarette dealers about

          4  the tough penalties for selling cigarettes to minors

          5  and the toughened cigarette dealer licensing law

          6  that the Council enacted earlier this year have

          7  helped to bring about this drop in the violation

          8  rate.

          9                 Our Consumer Services Division has

         10  become our early warning system as we reallocate our

         11  resources to high complaint categories.

         12                 Although often referred to as the

         13  Complaint Division, Consumer Services also answers

         14  inquiries from consumers who want information about

         15  a specific business, such as whether the business

         16  has a license or doesn't receive a lot of

         17  complaints.

         18                 This year Consumer Services received

         19  233,000 requests for information, a more than 41,000

         20  increase over the previous year.

         21                 The increased training and monitoring

         22  of the staff that brought about dramatic reductions

         23  during the last fiscal year and the time it takes to

         24  process electronic store and furniture complaints

         25  have continued to pay dividends.
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          2                 The closure rate for valid complaints

          3  has risen slightly from 96 to 97 percent and the

          4  proportion of closed cases resolved in the

          5  consumer's favor has increased from 43 percent of

          6  8,300 cases in Fiscal 1999, to 73 percent of 7,394

          7  cases in Fiscal 2000.

          8                 The substantial improvements we made

          9  last year in our website have dramatically increased

         10  traffic from 17,000 in June 1998, which was itself a

         11  200 percent increase from the year before, to 40,334

         12  in June 2000, which more than doubled the traffic

         13  from last year.

         14                 The number of visitors has continued

         15  to climb since then, hitting a peak of 54,000 in

         16  August.

         17                 We are also realizing the benefits

         18  from the resources we began allocating to more

         19  in-depth and complex issues affecting consumers, let

         20  me highlight a few of them.

         21                 The 40-page report titled "The High

         22  Cost of Dying: Rising Prices and Consumer Deception

         23  in the Funeral Industry," that we released in

         24  February 1999 became the foundation for the

         25  amendments to our "Information with Respect to
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          2  Funeral Costs" Rule. One of the report's primary

          3  findings was that one international funeral company,

          4  Service Corporation International, had acquired an

          5  enormous percentage of the Jewish funeral homes in

          6  New York City and that its domination of the market

          7  was resulting in higher prices for consumers. The

          8  amended rule required funeral homes to display

          9  ownership information to enable consumers to know

         10  who they are actually dealing with, and mandated

         11  other disclosures that made it easier for consumers

         12  to learn about funeral costs.

         13                 Although the implementation of the

         14  rule was delayed by litigation initiated by the

         15  funeral industry, the inspections since conducted

         16  since the rule became effective in August 1999

         17  indicates widespread compliance with the revised

         18  rule.

         19                 On April 25, 2000, the Department

         20  began license revocation hearings against New York

         21  Apple Tours. You saw one of the results yesterday.

         22  The license revocation action is based on evidence

         23  that New York Apple Tours falsified records of buses

         24  imported for service in New York City and

         25  sidestepped U.S. Customs, EPA emissions requirements
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          2  and U.S. Department of Transportation Structural

          3  Safety Guidelines.

          4                 As part of the November 1999 used car

          5  dealer initiative, DCA took legal action to revoke

          6  the licenses of three used car dealer auctioneers in

          7  Brooklyn, Staten Island and the Bronx, for selling

          8  defective and sometimes dangerous vehicles.

          9                 These dealer auctioneers face more

         10  than $200,000 in fines and consumer restitution, as

         11  well as the potential loss of their licenses.

         12                 Problems ranged from cars stalling as

         13  they were driven off the lot to an accident caused

         14  by brake failure. The Department's used car

         15  initiative resulted in a total of 348 violations

         16  issued. The Department issued a total of 2,800

         17  violations of used car dealers in Fiscal 2000.

         18                 In September of 1999 the Department

         19  announced that 40 percent of salad bars inspected

         20  throughout the City were overcharging consumers by

         21  not accounting for proper weight of the container.

         22                 Although some stores deducted the

         23  "tare weight" for a small container, they did not

         24  increase the tare weight for larger containers.

         25  State law requires the tare weight to be deducted
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          2  before calculating the price of the food that is not

          3  prepackaged.

          4                 Our summer enforcement initiative

          5  found 86 percent of merchants complying with the

          6  State law that prohibits the sale of box-cutters to

          7  anyone under 18 years old. The compliance rate was

          8  the highest ever, showing a 9 percentage point

          9  increase in compliance from Fiscal 1999, and a 45

         10  percentage point increase in compliance in Fiscal

         11  '97.

         12                 The Department continues to focus on

         13  fruit and vegetable stands that clog the sidewalks

         14  in front of stores because they are larger than the

         15  legal limit. In one Brooklyn neighborhood, three

         16  stores were violating the limit at once, almost

         17  completely blocking pedestrians from passing.

         18                 With the help of other agencies, DCA

         19  seized 7,000 pounds of food from these stores and

         20  donated the food to homeless shelters through City

         21  Harvest.

         22                 In response to numerous consumer

         23  complaints, DCA took action against three

         24  electronics stores in Brooklyn and Manhattan. The

         25  Department revoked the license of one Brooklyn store
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          2  caught by inspectors selling used items as new and

          3  falsely labeling computers with a brand name when

          4  only one of the many components was actually

          5  manufactured by the brand name company.

          6                 The Department has begun legal action

          7  to revoke the license of two Manhattan retailers for

          8  preying on tourists by altering the prices signed

          9  for on credit card slips. We are even now bringing

         10  an additional 42 cases in our concerted effort to

         11  cull out the predators from this industry.

         12                 All in all, fiscal 2000 was a very

         13  productive year for Consumer Affairs. The Department

         14  has improved its services to consumers by continuing

         15  with its highly productive targeted inspection

         16  program and by decreasing the time it takes to

         17  resolve consumer complaints while increasing our

         18  focus on special initiatives.

         19                 At the same time, we continue to

         20  understand the need to assist businesses by reducing

         21  the amount of time it takes to get a license and

         22  making our services more accessible by putting

         23  license applications on the Internet.

         24                 As the Commissioner, however,

         25  regularly emphasizes, there is always room for
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          2  improvement and she asked me to assure you she will

          3  continue to strive to make DCA a more efficient and

          4  effective agency throughout the next year.

          5                 That concludes my prepared statement.

          6  Thank you again for the opportunity to testify and I

          7  would be happy to answer any questions you may have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes, I do have

          9  some questions I would like to ask you.

         10                 Last year the Department had 81

         11  inspectors. This year the Department has 84

         12  inspectors. Why can't the Department meet its plan

         13  for 88 full-time inspectors?

         14                 MR. EILER: We are interviewing as we

         15  speak. Yesterday the Director of Enforcement, I

         16  couldn't talk to him because he was interviewing

         17  inspectors.

         18                 So, we are constantly trying to keep

         19  at the level that we can, but we can't have any

         20  control over turnover of people wanting to go

         21  somewhere else as well.

         22                 So, we are doing as well as we can.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, you

         24  know, if you take on more responsibilities, we have

         25  to make sure that there is enforcement to go along.
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          2                 MR. EILER: We are very cognizant of

          3  that, and we are doing our best to keep the level

          4  where it is supposed to be.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: The Department

          6  has seen a sharp increase in requests for

          7  information by consumers. Has the Department hired

          8  more staff to deal with this volume of requests?

          9                 MR. EILER: I think we have put some

         10  more people into -- some regular staff. We have

         11  emphasized volunteers, but now we also have regular

         12  staff answering constantly, manning the phones. I

         13  think we are also improving the system where people

         14  can just get answers, so they can more easily get

         15  the answers through the system that we have got, the

         16  automated answering system.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Press one for

         18  this, two for that, three for this?

         19                 MR. EILER: Well, we are trying to

         20  streamline that, as well as possible. You have to

         21  use technology to the most advantage to get as much

         22  information out.

         23                 You know, we also do a lot of other

         24  things. The web sites that we have improved, I mean

         25  there is a traffic increase on the web site that is
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          2  phenomenal, and the Commissioner Hoffman regularly

          3  has press conferences and press announcements, and

          4  we can track consumers coming to our web site. You

          5  know, the hits that we realize are following the

          6  track, so these things are all effective ways to

          7  communicate with the public, and I think it is

          8  working very well.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Do you ever

         10  have complaints about the phone? You know, like

         11  press one, press two, press three?

         12                 MR. EILER: I am sure I haven't really

         13  tracked that. I personally also would like to have a

         14  faster response but, you know, we all have to learn

         15  to live with the press one and press two and

         16  hopefully get over the hump there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: In the Mayor's

         18  Management Report, under average complaint

         19  processing time, the response time measured in the

         20  amount of days has gone up.

         21                 What is the reason for the increase

         22  in days it takes for the Department to respond to

         23  complaints? For instance, parking lots, in 1999 it

         24  was 23, in 2000 it was 26. Furniture stores 32 in

         25  '99, 35 in 2000, and, you know, basically an
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          2  increase in -- I see here the only thing that did go

          3  down was home improvement contractors' license.

          4                 MR. EILER: Well, I think as I

          5  mentioned in the testimony, part of that is that we

          6  are able to get better resolution of complaints, and

          7  better resolution of complaints and dealing with

          8  that issue takes a little bit longer. So, I mean,

          9  you get kind of a trade-off. You get improvements in

         10  one area, that takes a little longer to accomplish,

         11  but you get better results.

         12                 And then, of course that situation is

         13  variable, it depends on the difficulty of the

         14  complaints, it depends on, you know, you can't hold

         15  hard and fast to what the numbers are going to be.

         16  But we try to get them to respond as quickly as we

         17  can. We are trying to get the intake. We have put

         18  the complaint forms on the web site so people can

         19  reach us faster so they don't have to write in for

         20  the complaint forms. They can get information and so

         21  forth and so on.

         22                 So, we are trying to make the process

         23  work as quickly and as effectively as possible.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Has DCA

         25  accepted new applications for newsstands?
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          2                 MR. EILER: We certainly have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Have you

          4  processed all the applications you currently have --

          5                 MR. EILER: I checked on that and I am

          6  told there is between 40 and 50 new applications for

          7  newsstands that have been pending since the thing

          8  has been opened up in 1999. Three have been

          9  approved, and the rest of them are for insight -- I

         10  mean, you have to do DOT insight reviews and all

         11  sorts of other things. So, we have the new

         12  applications and we are processing them, and the

         13  things are flowing down the pipeline.

         14                 We have issued, the current licenses

         15  have been issued and they are good now for 2002, so

         16  all the licenses, all the previous licenses have

         17  been issued, and so we are working on a new

         18  application.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, because

         20  I know I had a discussion with the Arts Commission,

         21  and some of the licenses they were holding up only

         22  because there were abandoned newsstands on the

         23  block, and someone wanted to open up a newsstand and

         24  they wouldn't issue the license, they wouldn't give

         25  the approval, only because there were abandoned
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          2  newsstands on the block, which I said, well, its the

          3  responsibility of the City to remove those

          4  newsstands. I mean, why should someone be deprived

          5  of business when there are two empty newsstands on

          6  the same block? Why can't they be removed?

          7                 MR. EILER: Well, all of this stuff,

          8  we are trying to get this sorted out as quickly and

          9  as effectively as we can, to process the new

         10  applications, the changes that happen. We work

         11  through DOT, Sanitation, to deal with the removal of

         12  the newsstands and all the rest of that stuff. So, I

         13  think we are targeting the area, and we are really

         14  moving on it to get the newsstands to where they are

         15  supposed to be. I mean, this has always been a

         16  difficult area but we are getting through it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay. But I

         18  think that, you know, with DOT and everybody, if

         19  everybody worked together and removed, you know, the

         20  abandoned newsstands and allow someone to be able to

         21  earn a living --

         22                 MR. EILER: Absolutely. That's a

         23  priority.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: That would be

         25  a great thing.
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          2                 MR. EILER: We are working on that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: A great way to

          4  start the new year.

          5                 MR. EILER: Absolutely. Get new

          6  newsstands out there.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And how are

          8  you doing with the cigarette licensing?

          9                 MR. EILER: We have done a lot with

         10  that. We have started out back in

         11  April. We sent out the first letter telling them,

         12  alerting them about what we are going to be doing,

         13  and then we sent out a follow-up letter. We sent out

         14  a first letter in June telling people we had an

         15  advance early warning licensing application process,

         16  we had an impact on that where people came in on

         17  that, and now we have long lines, although not long

         18  lines, we have extended hours, we have Saturday

         19  hours, we have gone out and done informational

         20  programs with the Association, with NYACK, which is

         21  the convenience store association in New York,

         22  training seminars, outreach. So, the applications

         23  are coming in and we are doing our best to get these

         24  accommodated and get the people licensed, get the

         25  people out there so this is a smooth transition
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          2  process. Because it is a little bit different, the

          3  last the license application before was relatively

          4  simple and straightforward, now with the

          5  requirements that are part of the licensing law to

          6  prevent flipping, we have to be a little more

          7  detailed in the application information and all the

          8  rest of that stuff. So, I think we are accomplishing

          9  this and the license applications are coming in and

         10  we have expanded our operations to accommodate that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay.

         12                 And my last question is, one of the

         13  goals of the Department is to educate businesses and

         14  the public on consumer issues. This year the

         15  Department held 30 events to publicize consumer

         16  issues. The Department is planning for 20 such

         17  events in 2001. Why such a decrease in the number of

         18  consumer events?

         19                 MR. EILER: Well, that is what may be

         20  planned in terms of events, but we are regularly

         21  going out there and doing these. Like, for example,

         22  in June we had the third annual intergenerational

         23  festival by Council Member Boyland's Office, where

         24  we sent four people. That was an extremely

         25  successful event that was held there.
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          2                 Then there was, for business services

          3  we had -- we went to the annual medical health fare

          4  at the VA medical center in October. We went to

          5  Throggsneck Home Owners Association in September

          6  dealing primarily with home improvement issues and

          7  so forth and so on. So, really the outreach program

          8  is there, and we can't, you know, predict how many

          9  there is going to be, but whenever there is a

         10  request that obviously warrants us putting out

         11  information, we do. We also have the other program

         12  that reaches out to consumers. I think the web site

         13  that we have redesigned which is becoming extremely

         14  efficient. Now we are hitting approximately 45,000,

         15  50,000 inquiries a month, which is quite a number,

         16  which is how we are reaching consumers. We are

         17  working on our outreach program in every possible

         18  way.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: So, what you

         20  are saying is the 20 could become 30?

         21                 MR. EILER: Oh, absolutely. That is

         22  not a limit.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay.

         24                 Council Member Sabini.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you.
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          2                 Good afternoon, Mr. Eiler. I am sort

          3  of at a loss with your testimony as it relates to

          4  the MMR to translate some numbers. You testified

          5  that you have reallocated inspection efforts to high

          6  complaint areas, which you delineated as stoop

          7  stands, parking lots, secondhand dealers and

          8  electronic stores. And you point out that there are

          9  46,000 and change violations in Fiscal 2000, which

         10  is an increase of 25 percent, issued the year

         11  before. But in the MMR, stoopline stand violations

         12  have gone down by about 50 percent.

         13                 MR. EILER: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: So which is

         15  it?

         16                 MR. EILER: Well, no, stoopline stand

         17  violations have gone down, others have gone up. The

         18  total number of violations written have I think

         19  remained relatively constant but there has been a

         20  shift within the categories where they have been

         21  written.

         22                 I think the emphasis are inspections

         23  have gone out there, violations are not a target, it

         24  is what is there. And we have been focusing on the

         25  inspections, and I think, as I mentioned in the
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          2  testimony, that with respect to stoopline stands,

          3  the really heavy emphasis we did on that has had I

          4  think an impact. And, so, we are not going to be as

          5  many of them, but there are still quite a few of

          6  them.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: You mentioned

          8  there are high complaint areas, the first one you

          9  mentioned, so are you saying that perhaps one of the

         10  reasons -- well, we could argue about how you

         11  presented the testimony, I feel it was sort of, by

         12  mixing in with others you sort of dilute what we

         13  really wanted to know. But you would say there are

         14  fewer stoopline stand violations because there is

         15  more compliance?

         16                 MR. EILER: I think the compliance has

         17  had an impact -- our efforts in the past had some

         18  impact on compliance, and that is one reason why the

         19  number of violations written has gone down, and that

         20  is one of the reasons that we really have only

         21  emphasized stoopline stands. But we still do that,

         22  and 11,000 in that area I think is still an increase

         23  from before, and, so --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: It's a 50

         25  percent decrease.
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          2                 MR. EILER: Well, from the year

          3  before.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right.

          5                 MR. EILER: But if you take the

          6  19,000, if you go back before that it is an

          7  increase.

          8                 So, essentially, I think we are

          9  getting a handle on the problem but we have to keep

         10  working at it, and that is what the 11,000 shows,

         11  that we are still working at it. But these are not

         12  targets. We are just basically giving you the

         13  results of what our inspections found, and our

         14  inspections have still continued to be there, the

         15  number of inspections that we have been able to

         16  achieve has really maintained the record numbers

         17  that we had before.

         18                 So, it is not that we are not out

         19  there but we may be finding some fewer here but more

         20  there. Weights and measures went up, so there are

         21  trade offs in terms of where it's going to go.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: A year ago,

         23  your agency released a parking guide for off-street

         24  parking facilities, licenses by DCA, included in the

         25  guide were prices, addresses and phone numbers for
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          2  facilities south of 72nd Street and Manhattan.

          3  Putting out this guide, what was the rationale?

          4                 MR. EILER: It was to give people an

          5  idea of what the parking rates were in different

          6  parts of the City. It was the normal kind of

          7  consumer information program that we generally do.

          8                 For example, we put out -- we do the

          9  heating oil survey, which we put on the web site,

         10  and that web site has a lot of hits where people

         11  want to find out what the price of home heating oil

         12  is. So, I am not exactly sure -- someone mentioned,

         13  you have the information about what the parking

         14  rates are, why don't you tell consumers about them

         15  so they can look some place and find out where it

         16  might be a good place, a good deal to find the

         17  parking and I think that's what it was.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Well, in your

         19  answer you said different parts of the City, yet

         20  it's really only the area of Manhattan south of 72nd

         21  Street. What about uptown? What about the other

         22  boroughs?

         23                 MR. EILER: Well, I think that that

         24  was the place that most the visitors coming in, that

         25  most people are mostly interested in looking at the
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          2  prices. It seemed that the issue was people were

          3  looking, mostly looking at the rates in Midtown area

          4  because that is where the huge influx of visitors

          5  is, so that was where it was most focused to put the

          6  information together, and I think, you know, I

          7  believe the inquiries that we have received, the

          8  people looking for that information indicates that

          9  we have hit the right target.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: The guide is

         11  available on the web both from your agency and City

         12  Planning, since you have released it on the web, do

         13  you have any idea how many people requested it?

         14                 MR. EILER: Jese, I didn't look at

         15  those numbers.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: What do you

         17  assume that the cost of this guide was to the

         18  agency?

         19                 MR. EILER: I have no idea. I don't

         20  think it was costed out. Obviously it took research

         21  time and also took printing time, but I couldn't

         22  give you a number.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Last summer

         24  you began accepting credit cards as payment for

         25  licenses and fees, what percent of the payments
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          2  through the Department are now made by credit card?

          3                 MR. EILER: I will have to get that.

          4  It went into effect in August, so I don't think that

          5  we have really got a good measure of what the impact

          6  of that is going to be.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Have you seen

          8  an increase in outstanding fines?

          9                 MR. EILER: I think it is really too

         10  early to see. August is really not enough time to

         11  even begin to start looking at the statistics, and,

         12  so, it would take a lot more before we can get any

         13  handle on that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you.

         15                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         17                 I just want to make a comment that

         18  the fruit stands in my area have improved immensely.

         19                 Council Member Spigner.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair.

         22                 As it relates to the stoopline

         23  enforcement, do you enforce against other than

         24  fruits and vegetables?

         25                 MR. EILER: I mean, there is one, the
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          2  stoopline which is the license, and then you have

          3  other things which you can sell within the business,

          4  it can have goods displayed outside of its store.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Are they

          6  governed by the rules and regs of the stoopline law?

          7                 MR. EILER: Well, that is under the

          8  transportation law, Article 19, which is the general

          9  sidewalk obstruction, I think it is Section 136.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You do not

         11  enforce against --

         12                 MR. EILER: That wouldn't be

         13  stooplines, no.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Merchandise

         15  and kitchen --

         16                 MR. EILER: Some kinds of displays

         17  require a stoopline license, and we certainly

         18  enforce that. Then there is other --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: How does the

         20  average consumer know whether it is a stoopline --

         21                 MR. EILER: He probably doesn't. They

         22  probably don't know the intricacies of that because

         23  Section 136, 19-136 I think is the sidewalk

         24  obstruction law, and that allows a business to

         25  display merchandise in front of its store, and that
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          2  may look like a stoopline but it technically would

          3  not come under the stoopline definition, so there is

          4  a difference between the two.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Would you

          6  advise New Yorkers to make their complaints to

          7  Consumer Affairs or the Department of

          8  Transportation?

          9                 MR. EILER: Well, I think, yes,

         10  probably at best that would be the consumer affairs,

         11  and I certainly would send them on. If it is not us,

         12  we will certainly get it to the right place.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Now, on page

         14  three, four or five paragraphs down, you say the

         15  Department continues to focus -- no, no. Yes. "The

         16  Department announced that 40 percent of salad bars

         17  inspected throughout the City were overcharging

         18  customers by not accounting for the proper weight of

         19  the container. Although some stores deducted the

         20  tare weight for a small container, they did not

         21  increase the tare weight for larger containers.

         22  State law requires the tare weight to be conducted

         23  before calculating the price of food that is not

         24  pre-packaged."

         25                 Given the popularity of these salad
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          2  bar-type restaurants, and I go in them whenever I

          3  can, I have no other alternatives, I don't see, I

          4  can't determine where or if a deduction is being

          5  made for that container; how do you know this?

          6                 MR. EILER: If you take a look at the

          7  scale, if it is a digital scale it should have a

          8  minus something on it when it is put on there.

          9  Before you put anything on there, there should be a

         10  minus number, and usually what happens is for the

         11  small item it's a minus four-hundredths of an ounce

         12  and for a larger it is seven-hundredths of an

         13  announce, so it is a minus four or minus seven that

         14  you will see.

         15                 If you don't see that number, then

         16  one of two things can be happening; either they are

         17  not deducting the tare at all, or what they are

         18  going to do is they have got a mechanism inside

         19  where they will deduct it separately for each item.

         20  It doesn't necessarily have to be shown on the

         21  scale, as long as they make the deduction, so it is

         22  possible for them to weigh it without doing the tare

         23  and then make the appropriate deduction before they

         24  ring up the cash.

         25                 What a consumer should be looking at
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          2  is number one, is to make sure that minus four or

          3  minus number is shown, and I make it a practice, if

          4  it is not there, I ask. And I say where is the tare?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And if you

          6  ask and they shrug their shoulders call you, right?

          7                 MR. EILER: Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Well, thank

         10  you very much.

         11                 MR. EILER: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         13                 This meeting is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 2:05 p.m.)
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